
BCP Council Offices, Town Hall, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY 

 

 
 

 

Notice of Health and Wellbeing Board 
 

Date: Thursday, 30 January 2020 at 10.00 am 

Venue: Royal Hampshire Committee Room, Town Hall, Bournemouth BH2 
6DY 

 

Membership: 

Chairman:  

Cllr V Slade Leader of the Council (BCP Council) 

Vice-Chairman:  

T Goodson NHS Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group 

Cllr L Dedman Portfolio Holder for Adults and Health (BCP Council) 
Cllr S Moore Portfolio Holder for Children and Families (BCP Council) 
Cllr K Wilson Portfolio Holder for Housing (BCP Council) 
Graham Farrant Chief Executive (BCP Council) 
Jan Thurgood Corporate Director, Adult Social Care (BCP Council) 
Judith Ramsden Corporate Director, Children's Services (BCP Council) 
Kate Ryan Corporate Director, Environment and Community (BCP Council) 
Sam Crowe Director, Public Health (BCP Council) 
D Fleming NHS Poole Hospital and Royal Bournemouth and Christchurch Hospital 
E Yafele Dorset Healthcare Foundation 

S Sandcraft NHS Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group 

R Ramtohal NHS Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group 

D Richardson NHS Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group 

T Knight NHS Dorset Cinical Commissioning Group 

L Bate Healthwatch 

K Loftus Bournemouth and Poole Voluntary Services Councils 

S Why Dorset and Whiltshire Fire and Rescue Service 

J Vaughan Dorset Police 
 

All Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board are summoned to attend this meeting to 
consider the items of business set out on the agenda below. 
 

The press and public are welcome to attend. 
 

If you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please 
contact: Democratic Services or email democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: Tel: 01202 454668 or 
email press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 
  

This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 

A
v
a

ila
b
le

 o
n

lin
e
 a

n
d

 

o
n
 t

h
e
 M

o
d
.g

o
v
 a

p
p
 

 

 

 

 

 
Graham Farrant 

 

Chief Executive 
 

 

22 January 2020 
 



 

 

AGENDA 
Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public 

1.   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies for absence from Board Members. 
 

 

2.   Substitute Members  

 To report on any changes in the membership of the Board. 
 
 

 

3.   Declarations of Interests  

 Members of the Board are required to comply with the requirements of the 
Localism Act 2011 regarding Disclosable Pecuniary Interests. Declarations 
received will be reported at the meeting. 

 

 

4.   Confirmation of Minutes and Action Sheet  

 To consider the following: 
 

 

a)   Minutes of meeting held on 25 September 2019 5 - 12 

 To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 
25 September 2019. 

 

b)   Action Sheet 13 - 16 

 To note and comment as required on the action sheet which tracks 
decisions, actions and outcomes arising from previous meetings of the 
Board. 
 

 

5.   Public Issues  

 To receive any public questions, statements or petitions submitted in 
accordance with the Constitution. Further information on the requirements 
for submitting these is available to view at the following link:- 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s2305/Public%20Items%2
0-%20Meeting%20Procedure%20Rules.pdf  

The deadline for the submission of: 

Public questions is Thursday 23 January 2020. 

A statement is midday, Wednesday 29 January 2020 

A petition is midday, Wednesday 29 January 2020 
 

 

6.   BCP Council Local Plan 17 - 26 

 To provide an opportunity for input from the Board into the Local Plan 
development. 
 
 
 

 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s2305/Public%20Items%20-%20Meeting%20Procedure%20Rules.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s2305/Public%20Items%20-%20Meeting%20Procedure%20Rules.pdf


 
 

 

7.   BCP Housing Strategy  

 To outline the approach to develop a BCP Housing Strategy and provide an 
opportunity for early input from the Board on the Strategy. 
 

 

8.   Dementia Services Review Update 27 - 38 

 To update the Board on the new services following the completion of the 
Dementia Services Review. 
 

 

9.   Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) - Quarterly Update  

 To receive an update on the current position.  
 

 

10.   CAMHS Transformation Update 39 - 46 

 To receive an update on the CAMHS transformation.  
 

 

11.   Outcomes and Actions from the Development Session 28 November 
2019 

47 - 66 

 The Board will consider outcomes and actions from the development 
session held on 28 November 2019. 
 

 

12.   Our Dorset - Looking Forward Pan  

 The Board will be updated on the above and the sign off arrangements for 
the Plan. 
 

 

13.   Forward Plan 67 - 70 

 For the Board to receive an update on the development of the Forward 
Plan. 
 

 

14.   Future Meeting Dates  

 The Board is asked to consider dates for meetings of the Board beyond 
June 2020. 
 

 

 
No other items of business can be considered unless the Chairman decides the matter is urgent for reasons that 
must be specified and recorded in the Minutes. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 – 1 – 
 

BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

Minutes of the Meeting held on 25 September 2019 at 9.00 am 
 

Present:- 

Cllr V Slade – Chairman, Leader of the Council (BCP Council) 

T Goodson – Vice-Chairman, NHS Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group 

 
Present: Cllr S Moore Portfolio Holder for Children and Families (BCP Council) 

Cllr K Wilson Portfolio Holder for Housing (BCP Council) 
J Thurgood Corporate Director, Adult Social Care (BCP Council) 
J Ramsden Corporate Director, Children's Services (BCP Council) 
S Crowe Director, Public Health (BCP Council) 
D Parker, NHS Poole Hospital and Royal Bournemouth and 
Christchurch Hospital 
E Yafele Dorset Healthcare Foundation 
S Sandcraft NHS Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group 
R Ramtohal NHS Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group 
D Richardson NHS Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group 
T Knight NHS Dorset Cinical Commissioning Group 
L Bate Healthwatch 
S Why Dorset and Whiltshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 
  

 
 

11. Apologies  

Apologies were received from Councillor L Dedman, and G Farrant, D 
Fleming, K Ryan, K Loftus and J Vaughan. 

12. Substitute Members  

D Parker Deputy Chief Operating Officer Royal Bournemouth and 
Christchurch Hospitals acted as substitute for D Fleming. 

13. Confirmation of Minutes and Action Sheet  

The minutes of the meeting held on 24 July 2019 were agreed as an 
accurate record. 

The Action Sheet was agreed and noted by Board Members.  

14. Declarations of Interests  

There were no declarations of Pecuniary Interest or any other interests 
made at this meeting.  

15. Public Issues  

There were no public questions, statements or petitions submitted for this 
meeting.  

16. Our Dorset - Looking Forward  

 

5

Agenda Item 4a



– 2 – 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
25 September 2019 

 
The BCP Council Director for Public Health presented a report, a copy of 

which has been circulated and appears as Appendix ‘A’ of these minutes in 

the Minute Book.  

The Board were provided with the first draft of the refreshed Integrated 

Care System Plan, Our Dorset – Looking Forward 2019-2024. The 

narrative, high-level themes and ambitions of the Plan were explained to 

the Board.  

The Plan included a focus on delivering sustainable health and care 
services, the shifting of care closer to home and the delivery of a radical 
scaling up of prevention to help people stay well.  

The plan had been through consultation with public sector partners, the 

voluntary and community sector and members of the public. It was 

highlighted that the plan was created through genuine partnership and 

engagement. 

It was a five-year plan. Following the development of the plans ambitions 
the detailed work would begin to emerge through the task and finish groups 
outlined in the report. It was highlighted that the Board may want to 
consider oversight of the plan’s progress. 

The Health and Wellbeing Board were asked to sign-off the plan as the 
statutory board that promotes integration and prevention for the BCP area 
and to delegate authority to the Chair and Vice-Chair the approval of any 
subsequent changes to the draft plan before submission to NHS England 
on 27 September 2019.  

Members of the Board raised and discussed a number of questions, 

including the following; 

 It was recommended that the plan include details of how partners were 

engaged in its development; 

 When further iterations would be provided to the Chair and Vice-Chair; 

 Whether there could be further clarification regarding the climate change 

percentages on page 6. It was agreed this could be amended;  

 That the Dorset and Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service had resources 

for prevention and would like to promote their ability, in the plan, to 

provide opportunities for people to be signposted;  

 That the plan needed to clarify the Integrated Care System (ICS) status. 

The wording on page 2 on the ICS could be removed.  

 Page 40 could include capacity and accessibility to CAHMS and 

emotional support services for children and young people with those 

needs;  

RESOLVED that:- 

(a) The Health and Wellbeing Board note and approve the narrative of 

the draft plan, Our Dorset, Looking Forwards;  

6



– 3 – 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
25 September 2019 

 
(b) The Board delegate authority to the Chair and Vice-Chair to 

approve any subsequent changes to the draft plan before 

submission to NHS England on 27 September 2019;  

Vote: Unanimous 

 

17. The Better Care Fund - Planning for 2019/2020  

The Principal Officer, Quality Assurance and Planning, for BCP Council 
presented a report, a copy of which has been circulated and appears as 
Appendix ‘B’ of these minutes in the Minute Book.  

The report provided an overview of the contents of the Better Care Fund 
(BCF) Plan 2019-20. The Fund was a key delivery vehicle for providing 
person centred integrated care within health, social care, housing and other 
public services. 

The Board were asked to sign off the Plan prior to it being submitted for 
national assurance on 27 September. It was highlighted that the Plan was 
on track to receive assurance.  

The programme had run since 2013 and most of the pooled resources for 
the plan came from existing funds. Additional contributions were made by 
the Local Authority and the CCG. There were also extra short-term grants 
including the winter pressure grant.  

The plan included details such as income and expenditure, progress on 
plans, and performance metrics. The plans initiatives and operational 
activities were also highlighted. The Board were informed that the 5 key 
schemes from the 17-19 plan would be carried over and additional work 
would be undertaken.  

The Corporate Director for Adult Social Care highlighted the success of the 
plan and its benefit to local people, particularly in reducing delayed 
transfers of care. 

Members of the Board raised and discussed a number of questions, 

including the following; 

 Where the focus needs to be to develop the schemes; 

 The importance of working collaboratively;  

 A recognition there are still challenges and a need for continued focus 

on these; 

 Healthwatch had undertaken work on access to primary care in care 

homes and would be keen to work collaboratively to improve access for 

those who live in care homes;  

 The numbers and timescales for delayed transfer of care targets and the 

targets’ impact;   

 That an update on whether the Plan had passed the national assurance 

test be provided at the next meeting, and the next full update be 

provided in March;   

7



– 4 – 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
25 September 2019 

 
RESOLVED that:-  

(1) The Board approved the Better Care Fund Plan for 19/20, including 
the investment and delivery plans outlined in the report.  

Vote: Unanimous 

 

18. Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) - Quarterly Update  

The Interim Service Director Inclusion and Family Services presented a 
report, a copy of which has been circulated and appears as Appendix ‘C’ of 
these minutes in the Minute Book.  

The report provided the Board with an update against the recommendations 
presented at its meeting in July 2019. The Board were informed that there 
had been significant progress in the creation of a self-assessment covering 
health, education and care. 

It was also explained that a workshop would be held on 18 October to aid 
the development of a BCP Joint Commissioning Strategy for special 
educational needs. 

The Joint Commissioning Strategy, self-assessment and implementation 
plan would be bought to the next meeting of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board.  

Members of the Board raised and discussed a number of questions, that 

included the following; 

 Ways BCP Council was engaging with parents of children with special 

educational needs. A survey had been carried out and the SEND 

Transformation Board would be looking at the summary of results. 

There was also a coproduction focus group with Parents Together 

Forum and BCP Council were looking at the network of opportunities 

parents had to engage with other systems.  

 The survey was designed to underpin the Plan and the Self-Assessment 

and would be available to the Health and Wellbeing Board. The 

Chairman requested that the outcomes of the survey, including any 

input from those age 18-25, were included in the next quarterly update; 

 BCP Council would be looking to develop a BCP approach to SEND 

which would be bought to the Board at the next meeting; 

 That BCP Council were working on a model to prepare young people for 

adulthood. The model would seek to strengthen the range of early 

planning available to families, parents, carers and young people. Its aim 

was to help young people achieve their aspirations for the future;  

 New independent living flats had been developed to help young people 

reach their aspirations and live a more fulfilled adult life; 

 That the increase in EHCP’s was part of a national and local picture and 

it was important to understand why some parents might feel the need to 

escalate their child’s needs to an EHCP; 

8



– 5 – 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
25 September 2019 

 

 The importance of engagement with headteachers and parents and the 

provision of support that would enable them to help children with 

emotional and mental health needs remain in a mainstream setting and 

receive the additional help and support they need.  

RESOLVED that:- 

(1) The panel noted the progress against the recommendations 

presented to the Board in July 2019 

(2) The Board would continue to support the BCP Joint 

Commissioning Strategy 

(3) The Board considered and agreed a Peer Review for SEND to be 

held in January 2020 

(3a) To work with the LGA at the next development session to agree 
the scope of the Peer Review. The length of the development session 
would need to be extended to accommodate this. 

  

19. Pharmacy Applications  

 The BCP Council Director for Public Health presented a report, a copy of 

which has been circulated and appears as Appendix ‘D’ of these minutes in 

the Minute Book.  

The Health and Wellbeing Board had a statutory responsibility to publish a 
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) every three years and a role as 
a statutory consultee when pharmacies made an application to NHS 
England through its Primary Care Support Team.  

Primary Care Support England had notified the Board of two applications. 
One relocation of a pharmacy with a response due by 20 September and 
one consolidation of pharmacies with a response due by 27 September.  

The report included analysis on whether, within the Pharmaceutical Needs 
Assessment, any impact on the local populations ability to access 
pharmaceutical services could be identified.  

It was considered that there would be a negligible impact on access in the 
first application and no material difference in access caused by the second 
application.  

Members raised and discussed a number of questions including the 
following; 

 Whether enhanced services were considered when assessing 

applications, including opening hours, services and staff skill’s and 

training, particularly knowledge of the exploitation agenda. It was 

highlighted that the way the pharmacy was run was also important to 

ensure residents needs were being met; 

 Details of the recommended delegation to the Public Health Team of 

applications of no significant change, including that applications where 

there would be a significant loss would go to the Board and a process 

would need to be agreed for this;  

9



– 6 – 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
25 September 2019 

 

 That working with the Medicines Management Team at the CCG could 

be beneficial; 

 The Director of Public Health would find out whether changes to 

dispensing Doctors was included in the applications for consultation; 

  How people who use the pharmacy are informed of potential changes 

and can comment. The Director of Public Health agreed to find out and 

provide a response.  

RESOLVED that:- 

(1) The Board noted the applications and that no response had been 

made for application 1;  

(2) The Board approved the response to the Primary Care Support 

Team in respect of application 2, as set out in appendix 1 of the 

report; 

(3) The Board delegated authority to the public health team to respond 

to applications for relocation where there is no significant change.  

Vote: Unanimous  

 

20. Forward Plan  

A draft Forward Plan was circulated at the meeting.  

Members of the Board raised and discussed a number of questions, 

including the following; 

 Details of the developmental session on 28th November and the addition 

of an item to discuss the scope of the SEND Peer Review; 

 The addition of an item on suicide prevention, to aid the development of 

a suicide prevention plan for BCP. That the report include links to online 

training and other useful communications on suicide prevention; 

 The details of a talk on suicide prevention being held at the Arts by the 

Sea Festival; 

 The benefits of the WaitLess application, Healthwatch were talking to 

people about their experience in A&E and could promote it;  

 

21. Future Meeting Dates  

30 January 2020, 10am – 12 noon. 

26 March 2020, 10am – 12 noon. 

17 June 2020, 10am- 12 noon. 

Developmental Sessions  

28 November 2019, 9.30am – 12 noon. 

27 February 2020, 10am -12 noon. 

 

10



– 7 – 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
25 September 2019 

 
The meeting ended at 10:10  

 CHAIRMAN 

11



This page is intentionally left blank

12



ACTION SHEET – BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

Minute 
number 

Item  Action*  
*Items remain until action completed. 

Benefit Outcome (where 
recommendations 
are made to other 
bodies) 

Actions arising from Board meeting: 24 July 2019 

7 Amendment to the 
Protocol   
 
 

Decision Made: 
 
The Board sought to amend the Protocol to allow substitute 
members. 
 

 Actioned – It was confirmed that named substitutes 
could be provided on an ad hoc basis until the 
business protocol is reviewed  
 

To enable members to 
send representatives in 
their absence  
 
 

N/A 
 

8 Approval of Better 
Care Fund Plan 
2019/20 –  
 

 

Decision Made: 
 
That the Health and Wellbeing Board agree the Better Care 
Fund Plan prior to it going through NHS I and NHS England 
for a national assurance process 
 

 Actioned – Included in the Forward Plan for 
September 
 

To enable the Boards 
views to be considered 
and to enable the 
Board to maintain 
oversight of this issue. 
 
 

N/A 
 

10 SEND Update 
 
Transformation 
Board Governance 
Proposals  
 
 
 

Decision Made:  
 
That the Transformation Board bring back clear proposals 
on the Governance expectations of the Board. To include 
clear guidance on the differing functions of Cabinet and the 
Health and Wellbeing Board 
 

To ensure greater 
clarity around the 
Governance 
expectations of the 
Board 
 
 
 

N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13

A
genda Item

 4b



Minute 
number 

Item  Action*  
*Items remain until action completed. 

Benefit Outcome (where 
recommendations 
are made to other 
bodies) 

 
Transformation 
Plan  

 Actioned – Included in the Forward plan for 
November 
 
That the Improvement Plan is bought back to the Board and 
includes consideration on how to include disengaged 
parents and carers in the Parent and Carer Forum and 
suggestions for monitoring the gap between those 
presenting with a SEND need and those receiving services.  
 

 Actioned – Included in the Forward plan for 
November 
 

 
 
 
To enable the Board to 
maintain oversight of 
this issue. 

 
 
 
N/A 
 

Actions arising from Board meeting: 25 September 2019 

17  Better Care Fund 
Plan  

Decision Made:  
 
 The Board to receive an update on whether national 
assurance was passed.  
 
 
The Board to receive a full update on the BCF Plan  

 
 Actioned – Included in the Forward Plan for March 
 

To enable the Board to 
maintain oversight of 
this issue. 
 
 

 

18 Special 
Educational Needs 
and Disabilities – 
Quarterly Update  

Decision Made: 
 
That the next quarterly update on SEND include the 
outcome of the survey and includes the views of those aged 
18-25.  
 

To enable the Board to 
maintain oversight of 
this issue. 
 
 
 
 

 

14



Minute 
number 

Item  Action*  
*Items remain until action completed. 

Benefit Outcome (where 
recommendations 
are made to other 
bodies) 

That the LGA work with the Board to agree the scope of the 
Peer Review 
 

 Actioned – The Board agreed to consider the scope 
of the Peer Review at their developmental session on 
28 November 2019 
 

To enable the Boards 
views to be considered 

19 Pharmacy 
Applications  

Decision Made: 
 
The Director of Public Health would provide information on 
whether dispensing DR’s were included in the applications 
for consultation and how local people would be informed of 
pharmacy closures 
 

To enable the Board to 
maintain oversight of 
this issue. 
 

 

20 Forward Plan  Decision Made: 
 
To consider an item on Suicide Prevention  
 

 Actioned – Included on the Forward Plan 
 
 

To enable the Board to 
maintain oversight of 
this issue.  
 

 

 

15



T
his page is intentionally left blank

16



 

 

BCP Health and Well-being Board 

 

Report subject BCP Council Local Plan 

Meeting date 30 January 2020 

Status Public Report  

Executive summary BCP Council is preparing its first Local Plan. The Local Plan 
once adopted will set out a planning framework for the area 
that seeks to address key strategic issues such as housing 
needs, location of development, employment, sustainability, 
provision of infrastructure and protection of the built and 
natural environment. 

The Local Plan is scheduled to be adopted by the end of 
2020. Work is now underway to form the evidence base and 
start developing issues and options for the plan that will be 
subject to engagement and consultation over the next couple 
of years. 

There are many links between Local Plan strategy and 
policies and health and wellbeing in an area. On this basis, it 
is proposed that the Health and Wellbeing Board consider 
how it wants to engage in the Local Plan process from this 
point forward. There will be opportunities to share and 
develop evidence base and work together on policy that 
ultimately will support the objectives of the Health and 
Wellbeing board. 

Some work has started already in terms of looking at the role 
of developer contributions in helping to fund some health 
infrastructure. A Task and Finish Group has been set up to 
looking at the issue of developer contributions. Alongside 
ongoing engagement with the Board, this report identifies that 
the remit of the Task and Finish Group could also be 
expanded to also work more broadly on the development of 
the Local Plan and ensuring that the objectives of the Health 
and Wellbeing Board are embedded as far as possible. 

The report identifies that the next key milestone for 
collaboration will be in Spring 2020 as the Local Planning 
Authority undertakes a series of preliminary engagement with 
stakeholders on possible options for the Local Plan. This will 
then support the next stage of public consultation later in 
2020. 

 

17

Agenda Item 6



 

 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that the Board: 

1) Notes the timetable for Local Plan production and the 

scope within the planning system to improve health 

and wellbeing across the BCP Council area; 

2) Provides advice to the BCP Local Planning Authority 

on the key health and wellbeing issues, and potential 

policy approaches, that the Local Plan should address; 

3) Notes the work being undertaken by the Health 

Contributions Task and Finish Group; and 

4) Advises how the Board considers it will work with the 

BCP Local Planning Authority in Local Plan Production 

including consideration of joint-workshops and 

expansion of the remit of the Task and Finish Group. 

  

Reason for 
recommendations 

To ensure the Health and Wellbeing Board are a key 
stakeholder in the development of the BCP Council Local 
Plan 

Corporate Director 
for BCP Council  

Jan Thurgood, Corporate Director, Adult Social Care 

Contributors Nick Perrins, Head of Planning including Building Control 

Wards All  

Classification For decision 
Title:  

 

The BCP Local Plan 

1. BCP Council inherited legacy local plans across the Bournemouth, Christchurch 

and Poole areas. These adopted plans vary in terms of age and approaches and 

therefore do not represent a joined-up approach to planning across the BCP 

Council area. In recognition of this, the statutory orders that set up the Council 

include a provision for BCP Council to have an adopted plan in place by 2024. 

2. BCP Cabinet approved the Council’s Local Development Scheme (LDS) in 

September 2019. The LDS is a statutory requirement to set out the Council’s 

timescale and high-level programme for the Local Plan preparation and adoption. 

The LDS sets an ambitious timescale of adopting the first BCP Local Plan by the 

end of 2022. 

3. The key milestones for the Local Plan adoption as set out in the LDS are as 

follows: 

18



 

 

 Regulation 18 issues consultation – This is the first stage where the 

Council asks the community what issues they consider should be addressed 

in the Local Plan. This was undertaken between October and November 

2019. 

 Further issues and options consultation – This is a non-statutory stage 

whereby the Council will start setting out how the issues identified at Reg 18 

stage and the evidence base might be addressed. This can include draft 

strategy options, possible sites and look at a range of issues around future 

land uses. It is anticipated that this further consultation will take place towards 

the end of 2020. 

 Regulation 19 Draft Plan Publication – Once the evidence has been 

collected and options considered, the Council will publish its draft plan for 

further public participation. This is the final stage before the plan is submitted 

for examination. The LDS sets out that the Reg. 19 stage draft plan 

publication will be towards the end of 2021 

 Examination in Public – Before a plan can be adopted it must be subject to 

an examination in public by an independent inspector appointed on behalf of 

the Secretary of State. Examinations usually last for around 12 months from 

submission to the inspector’s decision. On this basis, the majority of 2022 is 

earmarked for examination work. 

 Adoption – Once the plan has been through examination and found to be 

‘sound’ with any modifications added, the plan can be adopted. This is 

planned to take place at the end of 2022. 

4. Preparing a Local Plan is a relatively long process that takes on board 

engagement and consultation with the community and the outputs from an 

extensive evidence base. The BCP Local Plan is being developed on a similar 

timescale to the Dorset Council Local Plan to optimise scope for joint-working 

between the two councils on the cross-border issues. 

The Role of the Local Plan for Health and Wellbeing 
 
5. The purpose of a Local Plan is to set out a strategy and associated planning 

framework (in the form of policies to determine planning applications) that 

responds to an area’s needs and seeks to manage the built and natural 

environment in an appropriate way. 

6. The built and natural environment is recognised as being a key environmental 

determinant of health and wellbeing. For example, the design of our places can 

influence physical activity levels, travel patterns, social connectivity, mental and 

physical health and wellbeing outcomes. The Local Plan, therefore, has an 

important role in influencing how our area works in terms of where people live, 

access jobs and maintain active and healthy lives. 

7. The Local Plan will cover a whole range of issues such as identifying housing 

needs, how much affordable housing needs to be provided, providing land to 

19



 

 

support job creation, ensuring development provides for necessary infrastructure, 

locating developing close to sustainable transport networks, how people 

experience an environment and protecting our open spaces to provide areas for 

recreation and physical activity. Early engagement is needed on these issues to 

ensure that the final plan represents as far as possible a joined up approach that 

meets the needs of a wide range of individuals and other organisation’s strategic 

plans. 

8. In terms of some key headline issues that are already known, the BCP Local Plan 

will need to start from the basis of accommodating circa 2,600 homes per annum 

(39,000 homes over the 15-year period 2022-2037). This is a significant uplift 

from current housing requirements (representing approximately a 45% increase) 

and raises a variety of associated issues such as how can the area 

accommodate such growth and what additional infrastructure is needed to 

support it. 

9. In addition, the proportion of over 65s and over 80s are expected to increase 

significantly over the course of the plan. The ageing population in BCP and 

Dorset Councils places a considerable burden upon health care provision. There 

are also ongoing issues with tackling obesity and other health issues within all 

spectrums of the local population that all place pressure on the health service. As 

a result it is acknowledged that a key strategic objective for the area is to look at 

preventative measures that improve the general health and wellbeing of the 

population and reducing the pressure on medical services. 

10. Whilst there are challenges associated with accommodating growth,  the Local 

Plan can provide significant positive benefits to health and wellbeing and support 

the concept of preventative care through: 

 The protection of the countryside, improvement to the environment, new and 

enhanced public open spaces including new SANGS.  

 New housing to meet needs of a growing population and to replace outdated 

and unsatisfactory housing stock, provision of affordable housing 

 Facilitation of the delivery of new medical practices within easy walking and 

cycling distance of local community and on a public transport route;  

 Creation of walkable neighbourhood and communities supported by 

sustainable transport infrastructure that reduces the reliance on the private 

car; and 

 Facilitate the provision of new jobs and higher wage jobs to improve wellbeing 

and standard of life 

11. As a Local Plan will often provide a long-term strategy for the area (in planning 

terms) for 15 years from the point of adoption it is therefore crucial for 

stakeholders who wishes the plan to consider their particular issues to be 

involved collaboratively from the start of the process. 

20



 

 

12. It is therefore timely that the Health and Wellbeing Board have asked for this 

paper at the formative stages of evidence gathering and plan preparation will 

shortly start during 2020. There is a real opportunity for both the Health and 

Wellbeing Board and Local Planning Authority to engage with each other on the 

various issues being faced, and what the Local Plan should seek to do about 

them. There are various policy approaches that can be included in Local Plans to 

address health and wellbeing issues and discussion is needed on the scope of 

what these could look like in the BCP Local Plan. For example, consideration 

could be given to requiring development to be subject to Health Impact 

Assessments, seeking to restrict location of hot food takeways and setting up 

frameworks for developer contributions to invest in health and wellbeing 

infrastructure. 

13. Given that the next stage of the plan will be a public consultation on possible 

options later in 2020, the Local Planning Authority (LPA) requests that the Health 

and Wellbeing Board provides their views on the key health and wellbeing issues 

facing the BCP area, and share any evidence that exists to help shape the 

options work and development of future planning policies that will follow.  

14. In this regard, it is understood that the Health and Wellbeing Board will be setting 

up its own engagement with BCP Councillors in the coming months to start the 

wider discussion on the health and wellbeing agenda. Consideration could be 

given to involving the LPA in these discussions to have a joint-discussion on 

health and wellbeing issues and what the Local Plan could do to help address. 

Work to date 

15. It is important to recognise that the LPA has good working relationships with 

health and wellbeing providers as a result of the legacy plans. For example, the 

existing Local Plans were formed with input from the Clinal Commissioning Group 

(CCG) who helped with the development of Infrastructure Delivery Plans, which 

are important evidence documents that support Local Plans. This then provided 

an evidence base to secure developer contributions towards expanding local 

doctor surgeries in certain parts of the BCP area.   

16. However, despite this approach, very few Section 106 payments have been 

passed over from developers to the CCG to fund the physical expansion of 

medical practices; this is largely due to timing issues between when the funds 

can be released and when the CCG needs them. Community Infrastructure Levy 

has also not secured any funds for strategic health infrastructure due to the 

limited funds available and other priorities being considered first.   

17. In addition to this, over the past 12 months the Bournemouth and Christchurch 

Hospital Trust over the past 12 months has submitted requests for developer 

funding on major planning applications to help fund acute care expansion at the 

hospitals. The Council has been unable to support these requests to date as (i) 

the Trusts did not engage in the adopted local plan process so the infrastructure 

that now needs funding support is not included in the Infrastructure Delivery 

21



 

 

Plans and (ii) the Council does not consider the requests to meet legal 

requirements.  

18. In response to these requests the Health and Wellbeing Board set up a task and 

finish group to assess the needs of the NHS and the appropriateness of 

developer funding to work towards an agreed position by all parties. 

The Task and Finish Group 

19. The Task and Finish Group comprises: 

 The Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group; 

 Bournemouth and Christchurch Hospital Trust; 

 Dorchester Hospital Foundation Trust ; 

 BCP Council; 

 Dorset Council; and 

 Public Health Dorset. 

20. The Group has met twice and is due to meet again in the last week of January 

2020. To date these meetings have discussed: 

(i) Working collaboratively as an integrated health care system; 

(ii) To explore the health care needs and areas of funding; 

(iii) Working out a single health care tariff that the NHS then divides out 

between primary, secondary and acute health care; 

(iv) That the Hospital Trusts will postpone submitting requests to planning 

applications pending the outcome of this work;  

(v) That the hospital trusts focus on seeking contributions towards capital 

costs rather than revenue costs; and 

(vi) To restrict any future possible contributions to the BH postcode area as a 

means of avoiding double requests with other hospital trusts, e.g. 

Salisbury, Southampton, etc.  

(vii) Explore the use of the Health Urban Development (HUDU) Planning 

Contributions Model. The model is a comprehensive tool to assess the 

health service requirements and cost impacts of new residential 

developments. The model is licensed by HUDU for use within the NHS 

and was developed by NHS and local authorities in London to work out 

developer contributions. The model calculates: 

 The net increase in population resulting from new development 

 Health activity levels 

 Primary healthcare needs (GPs and community health facilities) 

 Hospital beds and floor space requirements 

22



 

 

 Other healthcare floorspace 

 Capital and revenue cost impacts 

21. The Task and Finish Group are looking at whether a single tariff could be worked 

out using the HUDU model that applies to every new home, based upon future 

growth projections. The Task and Finish Group will then prepare report for the 

BCP Health and Well-being Board containing the possible proposals. A report is 

expected in Spring 2020 subject to a positive outcome from the HUDU trial.  

22. Both BCP and Dorset Councils will be responsible for deciding whether to 

implement such a tariff-based approach. If a tariff approach can be justified, the 

two Councils may choose to use a seek a Section 106 style tariff on all 

development or a top slice from CIL.  

23. It is understood that the Hospital trusts would like any tariff to be introduced as 

soon as practicable. However, the Council will have to consider whether the 

evidence justifies the need for developer contributions to help fund this form of 

infrastructure over and above other sources. The Council may also have to 

consider preparing a Supplementary Planning Document to set out the mitigation 

strategy, particularly if using a Section 106 approach to collecting developer 

contributions. These aspects will take time to work through.  

24. The Councils are mindful that developer funding and CIL is a finite source and 

only so much can be secured before the viability of development is adversely 

affected. There are many competing demands for funding such as education, 

open spaces, regeneration, transport, flooding, mitigation of protected sites, etc, 

which the Council will need to consider and prioritise. 

25. The Council is also considering looking into moving towards Zero Carbon Homes 

as part of its Climate Change Emergency and overall development viability will 

need consideration. Each funding request from a developer will influence viability 

and could compromise the delivery of housing, in particular the contribution 

towards affordable housing.  

26. Through the local plan process the Council can best plan for meeting all of these 

competing financial demands to ensure that our local communities grow in 

healthy way. It may therefore be more prudent to look to implement health care 

funding alongside the local plan and CIL process with implementation of any 

possible tariff post adoption (2022). The Task and Finish Group will continue to 

explore this and report back to the Health and Wellbeing Board in due course. 

27. The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government is currently 

preparing guidance for how development should fund health care, as requests 

from the NHS to Councils have been made nationwide. The date of publication is 

not yet known, but clearly this guidance will influence the way forward.  

Working together 

28. BCP Council has strong working relationships with health and wellbeing 

providers, which is a good platform from which to formalise the approach to the 

23



 

 

BCP Local Plan. For example, health and wellbeing is embedded in the strategy 

for the Poole Local Plan (2018) and this approach was praised by Public Health 

Dorset. 

29. This opportunity to discuss the Local Plan with the Health and Wellbeing Board is 

welcome and consideration needs to be given as to how we work together going 

forward. 

30. One option is that remit of the Task and Finish Group could be expanded to 

continue regular meetings to explore the range of health and wellbeing issues 

that the Local Plan can influence. The Task and Finish Group would then have 

the day to day responsibility of forming the evidence base and identifying 

potential policy approaches jointly with the Local Planning Authority that can be 

reported into the Health and Wellbeing board as required. 

31. In addition to this, the Local Planning Authority would like to work with the Health 

and Wellbeing board in their proposed discussions with Councillors. It is 

understood some work on this is scheduled for Spring 2020, which would work 

well in terms of helping to shape the next consultation stage of the plan towards 

the end of 2020. 

Summary 

32. The BCP Local Plan is an important document for the Health and Wellbeing 

Board to engage in (as will the Dorset Local Plan). The Local Plan can help 

improve health and wellbeing in an area in terms of where development is 

located, improving the look and feel of a place, safeguarding and enabling 

delivery of new green infrastructure, promoting active and walkable communities 

and putting in place mechanisms to collect developer contributions.  

33. The Local Planning Authority invites the Health and Wellbeing Board to set out 

what issues it considers the Local Plan should address and what policy 

approaches it would like to see in the plan.  

34. To facilitate this, the Local Planning Authority would like to agree a way of 

working together throughout the process to share and develop evidence as well 

as seek to embed the Health and Wellbeing Board’s key issues into the plan. 

This could be done through expanding the current Task and Finish Group 

alongside other engagement and work with Councillors that is expected to start in 

Spring 2020. 

Summary of financial implications  

None at this stage. The work relating to possible use of developer contributions 

will need to be considered on an ongoing basis depending on the outcome of that 

work.  

Summary of legal implications  

Engaging with health and wellbeing providers is an important part of ensuring the 

Local Plan is found sound at examination. It is therefore critical that a clear 

24



 

 

working relationship is formed between the Health and Wellbeing board and the 

Local Planning Authority at this early stage of the Local Plan. 

Summary of human resources implications  

 There will be an ongoing requirement for officer time to be spent in workshops / 

task and finish group. This is part of business as usual for the planning policy 

officers and sufficient resource is available to facilitate this. 

Summary of environmental impact  

35. No issues identified at this stage.  

Summary of public health implications  

36. There are many potential positive benefits to public health such as through (i) the 

protection of the countryside, improvement to the environment, new and 

enhanced public open spaces including new SANGS, (ii) new housing to meet 

needs of a growing population and to replace outdated and unsatisfactory 

housing stock, provision of affordable housing, (iii) facilitation of the delivery of 

new medical practices within easy walking and cycling distance of local 

community and on a public transport route and (iv) facilitate the provision of new 

jobs and higher wage jobs to improve well being and standard of life 

Summary of equality implications  

37.  No issues identified at this stage. 

Summary of risk assessment  

38.  Failure to not engage properly could undermine the Local Plan process and miss 

the opportunity to properly embed health and wellbeing needs into the plan’s 

strategy and policy framework. 

 

 

25



This page is intentionally left blank

26



Dementia Services Review 

 

Bournemouth, Christchurch 
and Poole Health and 
Wellbeing Board 

 
 

  

Date of Meeting 30 Jan 2020 

Subject of Report Dementia Services Review Update 

Report Author  
Partner Organisation 

Diane Bardwell  
 

Responsible 
Commissioning body 

NHS Dorset CCG 

Delivery partner/s 

Dorset HealthCare NHS Foundation Trust. 
Local Authorities. 
Primary Care. 
Acute Hospital Trusts 

Executive Summary The vision of the Dementia Services Review is to ensure people living 
with dementia and their carers will achieve similar outcomes, regardless 
of where they live in Dorset and to be enabled to live well with dementia, 
no matter what the stage of their illness or where they receive care. 
 
The CCG and partners have been through a rigorous process of needs 
and data analysis, engagement and view seeking and have coproduced 
a new model for dementia care in Dorset which is presented within the 
Full Business Case. 
 
NHS England Stage I & 2 Assurance was given at the end of April 2019.  
 
Consultation was taken forward during June and July 2019 with overall a 
very positive response to the proposals.  
 
NHS Dorset CCG’s Governing Body on 13th November 2019 approved 
the new model of care and for Dorset HealthCare to be Prime Provider 
of the services subject to final investment decisions for 2020/21   
 

Impact Assessment: 
 

Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA): Appendix 2 

27

Agenda Item 8



Dementia Services Review 

Please refer to the 
protocol for writing 
reports. 
 

Locality Impact: Noted within the Full Business Case (Appendix 1) 
 
 

Budget: Implications noted within the report 

Risk Assessment: Risk Report within Full Business Case (appendix 1) 
and available at https://www.dorsetccg.nhs.uk/dementia/ 
 

Health and Wellbeing Implications: Proposals are aimed at improving 
peoples experience of Dementia Services in Dorset and ensuring people 
with Dementia have access to ongoing support to maintain their health 
and wellbeing  
 

Evidence Base and 
Strategic Alignment 

Use of Evidence: Outlined within the Full Business Case (Appendix 1) 
 
 

Evidence base with Joint Strategic Needs Assessment: A robust needs 
analysis and assessment was undertaken. See www. 
https://www.dorsetccg.nhs.uk/dementia/ 
 
 

Community engagement / express needs: the review adhered to the 
principles of co-production from view seeking all the way through to 
design proposals. The process ensured engagement with people with 
dementia and their carers. See https://www.dorsetccg.nhs.uk/dementia/ 
 
 

Alignment with the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy:  
 
 

Recommendation The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note the Full Business 
Case and proposals within for the future model of dementia care 

Appendices 

1. Dementia Services Review Full Business Case: 
https://www.dorsetccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/09.4-x-
Appendix-1-131119.pdf 
2. Equalities Impact Assessment: https://www.dorsetccg.nhs.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2019/06/Dementia-equality-impact-analysis.pdf 

Background Papers 

Dementia Services Review Project Initiation Document 
Dementia Services Review Needs Analysis 
Dementia Services Review View Seeking 
Strategic Outline Case 
Dementia Services Review consultation report 
 

28

http://staffnet/index.jsp?articleid=267689
https://www.dorsetccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/09.4-x-Appendix-1-131119.pdf
https://www.dorsetccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/09.4-x-Appendix-1-131119.pdf
https://www.dorsetccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Dementia-equality-impact-analysis.pdf
https://www.dorsetccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Dementia-equality-impact-analysis.pdf


Dementia Services Review 

Officer Contact 
Name: Diane Bardwell 
Tel: 01202 541443 
Email: diane.bardwell@dorsetccg.nhs.uk 

29



Dementia Services Review 

1. Background   

The Dementia Services Review was enacted following concerns about the existing pathways 

of care, increasing service demand, rising costs, an ageing population and national policy.  

The aim of the review was for’: ‘Every person with dementia, and their families and carers, 

receive high quality, compassionate care from diagnosis to end of life care. This applies to 

all care settings, whether home, hospital or care home’. 

Specific Dementia Service Review objectives include:  

 design and deliver consistent and high quality, compassionate care and support to 

meet the needs of people living with dementia and their carers from diagnosis to end 

of life within the existing financial resource; 

 ensure equity of outcomes for people living with dementia and their carers across 

Dorset localities; 

 support an ambition to achieve a diagnosis rate of two thirds of the prevalent 

population; 

 consider implications and any additional resource requirements associated with 

increasing the number of people being diagnosed with dementia, and starting 

treatment within six weeks from referral; 

 improve the quality of post diagnosis treatment and support. 

The scope of the review includes the services outlined within Figure 1: 

 Figure 1. Services in scope  

Provider Services in scope 

Dorset HealthCare 

NHS Foundation Trust 

Memory Assessment Service 
 

Dementia In-reach Service  
 

Intermediate Care Service for Dementia (ICSD) East  
 

16 commissioned In-patient beds Chalbury Unit (closed in 2016) 
 

12 commissioned In-patient beds Betty Highwood (closed in 2013) 
 

Older persons Community Mental Health Teams 
 

Haymoor Day Hospital, Alderney 
 

Melcombe Day Unit, Weymouth 
 

40 Specialist Dementia In-patient beds Alderney Hospital, Poole  
 

Alzheimer’s Society Memory Support and Advisory Service 

 

30



Dementia Services Review 

The operational budget associated with the services in scope equates to £11,380,442 

(based on 2019-20) with a total of 292 whole time equivalent staff. 

Figure 2. Current summary of dementia pathway 

 

Throughout the Dementia Services Review, the Project Board’s methodology has been to 

apply best practice in its decision-making processes and to embed ‘co-production’. 

Stakeholders included people living with dementia, their family carers, Dorset HealthCare 

NHS Foundation Trust, the Local Authorities, Alzheimer’s Society, voluntary sector 

providers, acute and community hospitals providers, care home sector and local councillors. 

2. Case for Change  

In September 2019 BCP had 4,450 people aged over 65 years diagnosed with dementia. 

This was 53% from the 8,338 total across Dorset.  

Across Dorset we have among the longest life expectancy in the country and the number of 

Dorset pensioners is predicted to rise by 30 per cent over the next decade. Although this is 

good news, increased longevity brings new challenges. One of the most significant is that 

more people are living with dementia thereby placing an increasing demand on dementia 

services and associated costs.  

Significant engagement was undertaken with the local population to gain their views on local 

Dementia Services and alongside a health and social care needs analysis which identified 

key themes that support the case for change:  

 Inequity of outcomes and access to services; 

 Ageing population; 

 Lack of integrated services; 

 Memory Support and Advisory Service contract end; 

31



Dementia Services Review 

 Dementia workforce challenges;  

 Access to Information and Communication across services; 

 Needs of family carers; 

 Dementia diagnosis and waiting times for diagnosis; 

 Early onset dementia and lack of specific services; 

 Lack of ongoing post diagnostic support to live well with dementia; 

 Different models of support offered via local Day hospitals; 

 Decline in specialist dementia inpatient admissions. 

3. Design and modelling stage 

Stage three of the project was the design and model options stage.  Approximately 300 

individual stakeholders including people living with dementia and family carers were involved 

in designing the new models. 

During this stage an initial long list of options went through a range of different analysis in 

order to shortlist to four options including a ‘do minimum’ and then identify the most 

acceptable preferred option to be presented for consultation. 

Critical success factors were used to define the shortlist: 

 Can the option really be implemented? 

 Does this deliver services which are safe and sustainable? 

 Will option be affordable? 

 Will this option deliver services that will be acceptable to people? 

 Is the option based on evidence of best practice? 

 Will this option result in a better experience for those who use the service? 

4. Preferred option  

The preferred option that was agreed and was consulted upon includes: 

 Provision of a Dementia Directory and website on Dementia; 

 A revised diagnostic service where patients are referred directly to the Memory 

Assessment Service from their GP whereby minimising any delay. This service would 

utilise Specialist Nurse Practitioners to assist with less complex dementia cases 

working alongside psychiatrists. Also, a neuropsychology service would be aligned to 

support cases which are more complex to diagnose; 

 ‘Cognitive Stimulation Therapy’ offered particularly to those given a diagnosis of 

vascular dementia, whom currently receive no treatment for their dementia diagnosis;  

32



Dementia Services Review 

 New roles in the form of ‘Dementia Co-ordinators’ to support, signpost, ensure a care 

plan is in place and offer patients and family carers a person to contact from the point 

of receiving a diagnosis of dementia to end of life. These Co-ordinators would work 

within Primary Care Networks alongside the other dementia team members and 

multi-disciplinary teams;  

 New roles of ‘Early onset Dementia Co-ordinators' specifically for people diagnosed 

with dementia whom are aged under 65 years to better meet their needs; 

 A new initiative of ‘Dementia Roadshows’ in which small events would run across all 

localities of Dorset giving basic information on dementia and dementia services and 

have representatives from various health and social care and other services 

available;  

 A new initiative ‘Carer Emotional Wellbeing workshops’ to be offered for all family 

carers of those living with dementia. These training sessions over a number of weeks 

would offer education around dementia, developing personal resilience and 

managing carer stress;  

 Formally commissioning ‘Dementia In-Reach' services into the West of Dorset to 

ensure the whole of Dorset is covered.  This service would offer support and 

education to care homes and community hospitals particularly around behaviours 

that challenge others; 

 Community Mental Health Teams for older people to work within locally based teams 

across Dorset continuing to cover both dementia and other mental illness. These 

teams will include working closely with Dementia Co-ordinators to ensure if patients 

need more assistance then services are more aware and responsive; 

 Providing a Crisis Helpline through the new Connections service provided by Dorset 

Healthcare and patients/family carers would be referred to appropriate service; 

 Formally commissioning and expanding the Intermediate Care Service for Dementia) 

into the West side of Dorset so all of Dorset is included. This service offers intensive 

support and treatment in the person’s own home/residence to try to maintain the 

person in their own home if possible.  

 Revising the model of care within Melcombe Day Hospital in Weymouth to align to 

the same approach as Haymoor Day Hospital in Poole and offer a safe place during 

daytime for those in a crisis and as a means of enabling people to remain in their 

own homes;  

 Offering one dementia specialist inpatient unit based at Poole in order to try to 

ensure sustainability of specialist registered staff. Travel costs and accommodation 

support would be offered to those family carers needing to travel from the West of 

the county.   

 

 

 

33



Dementia Services Review 

5. Public Consultation  

Following a successful NHS England assurance process with Stage 2 assurance given in 

April 2019 public consultation began on 17th June for a period of eight weeks and closed on 

the 11th August. Consultation materials included an online survey; a hard copy consultation 

document including a questionnaire; an Easy Read version; an animation video explaining 

the review and the proposals. 12 drop in events were held across Dorset including events in 

Poole, Bournemouth, Ferndown and Christchurch during daytime and evenings. Outreach to 

existing community groups, staff meetings and events was also facilitated. 

Evaluation of responses was commissioned by the Market Research Group at Bournemouth 

University. There was a total of 503 responses with a very significant level of agreement for 

the new model of care overall. The full report can be found at 

www.dorsetccg.nhs.uk/dementia 

Figure 3. Main survey agreement 

 

6. Business Case 

The Full Business Case (https://www.dorsetccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/09.4-x-

Appendix-1-131119.pdf) has been developed in line with the five Case Business Model and 

builds on the previously published Strategic Outline Case. The consultation findings were 

carefully analysed, and the preferred model adapted slightly to take findings into account. 

Whilst the majority agreed with the overall model there were significant comments around 

limiting the offer of Cognitive Stimulation Therapy to those with vascular dementia alone. 

Therefore, it was agreed by the Dementia Review Board to widen this offer.  

34

http://www.dorsetccg.nhs.uk/dementia
https://www.dorsetccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/09.4-x-Appendix-1-131119.pdf
https://www.dorsetccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/09.4-x-Appendix-1-131119.pdf


Dementia Services Review 

Dementia Co-ordinators have been aligned to Primary Care Networks with a total of 31 to 

cover Dorset and 16.5 WTE to cover BCP area (excluding management and administrators) 

Although 60% of people agreed with the specialist inpatient unit to be based in Poole many 

were concerned around this. Whilst it is unfeasible to offer another unit in the West travel 

and overnight accommodation costs for those needing public transport and living more than 

30 miles away is being proposed. 

It was agreed that Dorset HealthCare NHS Foundation Trust would be the prime provider of 

the services to ensure integration and the services would be implemented with a phased 

approach. In particular, the Dementia Co-ordinator service would commence from 

September 2020. Cognitive Stimulation Therapy and neuropsychology from January 2021. 

Figure 4 below highlights the new proposed dementia care pathway. 

Figure 4. Proposed new dementia care pathway 

  

A proposed phased approach reduced the year one costs and the summary can be seen in 

Figure 5 below. The first year investment is lower than the subsequent years to take into 

account new services being implemented at different times during the year.  

 Year 1 requires £823,021. This includes non- recurrent set up costs of £64,512 and 

recurrent pay and non-pay costs of £758,509 above the baseline funds. 

 Year 2 and thereafter requires £1,108,554 recurrent pay and non-pay above the 

baseline fund. 

DRAFT Dementia Care Pathway

Pre-diagnosis Post-diagnosis

National 
Dementia

Helpline

Crisis helpline

No 
diagnosis

ICSD

Intermediate 
Care Service 
for
Dementia
(6 weeks)

Inpatient

Alderney
2 x Single sex 
wards
17 beds each
+ 7 Bed ITUCommunity

Mental 
Health 
Team

Mild
Cognitive

Impairment

Own Home

Residential (Nursing/Care) Home

Gatekeeping

(Low) Support (High) Support Crisis Inpatient
Diagnosis

Diagnosis

Neuropsychology

EHCH

Screening

Assessment

Scan (CT/MRI)

Dementia Co-ordinators & Young onset Co-ordinators

Dorset 
Dementia 

Directory

Titration
(3 months+
12months  

review)

Shared 
Care 

Agreement

All patients with 
dementia 
diagnosis

CHC

CHC = Continuous Healthcare Funding
EHCH = Enhanced Health in Care homes programme
OOH – Out of Hours

Care plan 
/Advanced 
Care Plan

Local Authority Services: Respite 
and short breaks. Care at home

Local Authority
Day provision

Community 
Services

SALT Community 
Groups & support

Occupational 
Therapy

Assistive 
Technologies

Psychological
Therapies

Day Hospital

Dementia 
Roadshow

Cognitive 
Stimulation 

Therapy

Carer Support 
Workshops

General 
Practitioner

Over 50’s 
Health 

Checks

Health and Social 
Care Co-ordinators

Memory Assessment Service

Frailty 
Teams

Social Prescribing 
Link Workers

Carers 
support

In-reach

Step up and down 
community beds

People  with a dementia diagnosis Out of hours

Home Treatment 
services ,  LA, CMHT 

as appropriate

Social Care 
Gateway services

Review

35



Dementia Services Review 

 
Figure 5. Summary of new model of care costs for year 1 & 2 

Original service 19/20 NEW MODEL 

Cost £000  WTE YEAR 1 Cost 
with set up 

Phased 
implementation 

£000 
 

YEAR 2 
Recurrent 

Cost 
(excluding 

uplift costs) 
£000 

Info - Info & General helpline & 
Directory 

 11 11 

Memory 
Assessment 
Service  
23.47 WTE 

1,300 
 
 

Diagnostic model 4 From April 
2020 
 
 

32.74 1,572 1,566 

Neuropsycho
logy 0.51 
WTE 

29 Neuropsychology  
 

2.31 65 140 

Memory 
Advisors as 
current 
18 WTE 

597 31 Dementia Co-ordinators 
incl Young onset and Memory 
Roadshow (+ 3x managers& 
admin) 
 

35.40 884 1021 

Psychology 
2.40 WTE  

138 Psychology  
 

2.40 138 138 

  Cognitive Stimulation Therapy  
 

4.02 126 216 

  Carer emotional support 
 

1.51 67 67 

OP CMHT 
(based 54% ) 
50.49 WTE 

2150 OP CMHT (based 54% of 
budget) 
 

50.90 2150 2150 

In-Reach  
4.00 WTE 

182  In-Reach Team 
 

4.60 182 182 

Intermediate 
Care Service 
for Dementia 
58.56 WTE 

2,233 Intensive Care Service for 
Dementia  
 

52.90 2233 2233 

Day 
hospitals - 
different 
models 
10.63 WTE 

314 2 day hospitals aligned to 
Intensive support 
 

10.00 314 314 

Matron 
1 WTE 

57 Modern Matron 
 

1.00 57 57 

  Crisis helpline  - - 

40 Inpatient 
beds 
125.36 WTE 

4,379 40 Inpatient beds with travel 
and accom 
 

125.30 4,393 4,393 

      

Cost  11,380   12,202 12,488 

Variance -   823 1,109  

 

 

 

36



Dementia Services Review 

7. Anticipated Benefits 

The anticipated benefits include: 

 People will experience a smoother and quicker diagnostic process and receive post 

diagnostic support from diagnosis to end of life; 

 People will be supported to live well with dementia, have more responsive services 

which may prevent some crisis; 

 More choice and support for people living with dementia through an increased range 

of community options including education and support for carers; 

 More efficient and cost -effective services;  

 Greater compliance with NICE Standards; 

 Reduced inpatient admissions and system wide cost savings. 

 
Research by the Alzheimer’s Society on Dementia Advisors (with a similar role to the 

Dementia Co-ordinators) in 2016 found for every £1 invested in post diagnostic support from 

Dementia Advisors resulted in nearly £4 worth of benefits1.  This would equate to 

approximately £4 million return on investment in Dorset. 

Analysis of the impact of the ‘Intermediate Care Service for Dementia’ (ICSD) has shown 

this service is very cost effective as well as highly regarded by people using the service. It is 

providing a crisis service maintaining people within their own homes for broadly half the cost 

of a dementia specialist inpatient service and supporting nearly four times more people in 

the course of a year. This is apparent when applying a basic unit cost to both services based 

on patient usage and overall cost. An estimated cost per head for ICSD is £4,741 whereas 

the Dementia specialist inpatient beds are £34,424 per head. 

ICSD across Dorset prevented on average 366 admissions for a 12- month period. Relating 

this into costs savings by utilising a bed rate of £536.09 for an admission on Herm Ward and 

basing on the average length of stay for females of 87 days this would equate to savings of 

£46,639 per patient and £17,070,177 for all 366 patients. 

Studies have estimated 10% up to 25% of beds in acute hospitals can be occupied by 

people living with dementia2. Their length of stay is often longer than people without 

dementia, readmission rate is higher3. and there can be delays in supporting them to leave 

hospital.  

For those with a primary diagnosis of dementia with emergency and short stay admissions 

for patients aged 65+ there were 503 admissions during 2016-17 and 427 during 2017-18. 

This equates to a 37% reduction of avoidable admissions through improved community 

support as proposed in the new model and a cost benefit saving of £278,000 per annum. 

                                                           
1 https://www.scie-socialcareonline.org.uk/dementia-advisers-a-cost-effective-approach-to-delivering-
integrated-dementia-care/r/a110f00000Kvpz1AAB 
2 QJM; 2016: 41–44 
3 The Right care: creating dementia friendly hospitals. Dementia Action Alliance 

37



Dementia Services Review 

Across Dorset there has been a growth in people with dementia becoming eligible for 

Section 117 with an increased cost of circa £1m since 2014-15. With greater support and 

investment into community services, it is anticipated that crisis episodes will be minimised 

reducing the incidence of formal Mental Health Act admissions and subsequent Section 117 

eligibility. Reducing Section 117 by only 10% would release savings of £295,472 to the 

overall health & social care system. 

It is estimated that the direct cost benefit will be £2,201,820 per year, although not all will not 

be cash releasing. In addition, the evidence summarised above indicates that there will be a 

substantial return on investment, that would be realised across the life of the patients. 

It is proposed that the extra funding to support the implementation of the revised pathway 

will be through the Integrated and Primary Care Services additional £3 million investment for 

2020-21. However, this is subject to final investment decisions to be made by March 2020. 

Evaluation and monitoring is being built into the implementation of the new model of care 

with a Logic Model. This will ensure meaningful capture of the inputs, activity, outputs and 

overall outcomes including cost benefits. 

8.  Conclusion and recommendation 

The Dementia Services Review has successfully completed with a new proposed model of 

care agreed and is now awaiting final investment decisions. 

The co-production approach clearly influenced the positive consultation findings. Subject to 

positive investment decisions implementation of the new model of care will commence 

during 2020. 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note this report. 

 

 

Author’s name and Title : Diane Bardwell. Principle Programme Lead 

Date :  6 January 2020 

Telephone Number : 01202 541443 

 

 

 

38



 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

 

Report subject CAMHS Transformation Update Report 

Meeting date 30 January 2020 

Status Public report 

Executive summary The purpose of this report is to provide information to the 
H&WB Board about the progress of CAMHS transformation. 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that: 

 The H&WB note the report. 

Reason for 
recommendations 

To receive an update on the CAMHS transformation. 

Corporate Director Sally Sandcraft, Director of Primary and Community Care, 
CCG 

Contributors Stuart Lynch – DHUFT  

Elaine Hurll – CCG  

Wards All wards in the BCP Area 

Classification For information 
Title:  

 

Background  

 
1 The purpose of this paper is to inform the Health and Wellbeing Board about 

the ongoing transformation of the CAMHS Services across Dorset and to 
allow the board to contribute to the development of the plans and agree the 
implementation of the transformation plans. 

 
 NHS Long term plan  
 
2 The NHS long term plan introduced last year introduces or builds on ambition 

in the Five-year Forward View for Mental Health.  The Long Term Plan 
includes: 

 

 Increasing access to 100% of children who have a diagnosable mental 

health condition 

39

Agenda Item 10



 

 Develop services 0-25 (currently CYP MH services are 0-18) 

 Develop all age psychiatric liaison services (MH support and treatment in 

acute hospital settings) 

 Eating disorders service 

 Ensure that the area is working as a system through integrated 

approaches 

 Develop a 24-hour crisis response for under 18s 

 Four week waiting for CYP from referral to treatment 

 Reduce the number of hospital admissions for CYP 

3 Nationally NHS Children and Young Peoples (CYP) Mental Health (MH) 
services are only commissioned for up to 35% of the prevalent population 
(NHSE 20/21 targets).  Prevalent population means the number of young 
people who are likely to have a diagnosable mental health condition in the 
population.    

 
4 In Dorset there are approximately 12,704 CYP who are likely to have a mental 

health condition.  The CCG is commissioning for up to 35% (20/21 NHSE 
target) of those young people. It means that CYP MH services are only able to 
work with approximately 4,000.  The Bournemouth and Poole CAMHS teams 
are the busiest and under the most pressure. 

 
5 Dorset CCG and Dorset HealthCare want to ensure that all CYP who have a 

diagnosable mental health condition are able to access the right service to 
meet their needs.   

 
6 To ensure the delivery of the CYP MH Transformation there is governance in 

place through a CYP MH Steering Group that reports to the MH Integrated 
Programme Board which has oversite of all MH Programmes across Dorset.  
The Programme Board report in to the Integrated Community Primary Care 
Service Board (ICPCS). 

 
7 Dorset has a CYP MH Local Transformation Plan (LTP).  It was first written in 

October 2016.  This is an NHSE requirement and each year it is updated in 
line with developing national priorities.  The LTP was developed by all the 
partners represented on the CYP Steering Group. 

 
8 Usually the LTP is refreshed every year. However, this year a holding 

statement on the CCG Website states that it will be refreshed in September 
2020.  The reasons for the holding statement are being described through this 
report. 

 
9 As part of the Local Transformation Plan services have been developed and 

improved.  There has been: 
 

 The introduction of the Discovery Project which is similar to Dorset 

Recovery Education Centre for adults but redesigned with children and 

young people.  The project works in schools with children and young 

people 

40



 

 The commissioning of Kooth on line counselling service to assess whether 

on line counselling is something that would be used and helpful to some 

CYP.  There is a three-year test of concept in place. 

 Introduced the Connection Service which is Dorset’s 24-hour Mental 

Health Crisis Line which is all age and available to anyone experiencing 

crisis in Dorset including children and young people. 

Current CYP MH Service 
 
10 The services currently in place that are NHS funded and delivered are: 

 Six Community CYP MH teams across the county  

 Two Intellectual Difficulties CAMHS Teams (formerly LD CAMHS) 

 Inpatient unit – Pebble Lodge (NHSE Commissioned) 

 CYP Community Eating Disorders Service 

 Early Intervention Service 

 Looked After Children Nurse Service 

 Psychology for Youth Offending Service 

 LAC Psychology 

 Forensic CAMHS 

 Connection Service which is all age and provides access to CYP MH 

Expertise 

 Kooth being tried currently 

 Discovery Project being trialled which is a CYP equivalent of recovery 

education for adults who have mental health needs. 

11 In addition to the NHS services the CCG /Public Health allocates funding for 
the Local Authorities and this enables the LA to plan and deliver some CYP 
MH provision or service.  This includes programmes such as: 

   

 The whole schools approach to assessing MH need in schools  

 I can problem solve which is an evidence and strengths based programme 

that builds resilience 

 Public Health fund another whole schools approach programme for 

Physical Education in schools and School Nursing that has a focus on 

emotional health and wellbeing 

 Chat Health Text Messaging Service    

Local CYP MH Service Challenges 
 
12 The following indicates the challenges across the CYP MH System currently: 
 

 Service are under significant pressure   

 Referral numbers have remained at the same level but the number and 

complexity of staff caseloads have increased. 

 We think this is because the seriousness (acuity) of young people’s MH 

conditions has increased which means that they need more intensive 

support and treatment and this takes longer which is reflected in the 

referral rates and capacity challenges.  

41



 

 There are two areas in Bournemouth and Poole that have high numbers of 

referral and in consequence waiting times are long. 

 Waiting times for CBT are long and if there were more CBT practitioners 

waiting times could go down. 

 Pebble lodge admissions that are longer than necessary because young 

people are often waiting for the right placement or care package.  

 Historically CYP MH Services have not been funded adequately to meet 

the need for example not enough CBT practitioners and therapists.  

Forward planning and continued transformation 
 
13 The ongoing transformation is a mix of business as usual such as supporting 

improvement and best practice and ensuring that all the services provide the 
best possible access with the resources available.  There are also 
developments that have to be done over the next year because the NHS have 
mandated it. It is likely that there will also be locally driven developments 
based on local need. 

 
14 “Must do” items include increasing access for up to 100% of the prevalent 

population over the term of the Long-term Plan.  Dorset CCG had already 
committed to looking at how to increase access and what the likely costs 
would be.  This proposal was then supported in the NHS Long Term Plan. 

 
15 Developing 0-25 CYP MH Programme - nationally there is no formal advice 

about how to approach this and so there are 6/7 different approaches that are 
being used around the country.  In Dorset there has been no agreement about 
how this should happen.  The proposals will be developed through 2020 and 
form part of the ongoing transformation planning. 

 
16 Developing all age Psychiatric Liaison Service which means that CYP 

attending or admitted to the acute hospitals can access mental health 
assessment and treatment when needed. 

 
17 Crisis Home Treatment Teams - to be developed as a genuine alternative to 

hospital.  There will be a team in the BCP area and a team for Dorset. The 
teams will be able to visit children or young people up to three times a day in 
order to prevent the need for hospital admissions (which are often out of 
area).  The funding for this is through NHSE because it is they who 
commission hospital inpatient services.  

 
18 Mental Health Teams in Schools - Dorset is part of the trailblazers for MH 

Support in schools.  There will be three teams initially as part of the pilot.  The 
BCP Team, North Dorset team and Weymouth and Portland. 

 
19 The teams have 8 people in them and each team will work differently to 

support a group of up to 18 schools.  The expectation is for some face to face 
work with CYP but most of the work will be group work or work that the cluster 
of schools think will meet a collective need.  For example, in Weymouth and 
Portland the schools thought that a MH Induction Course would be useful for 
all staff to have. This means that the team will help to develop that.   

 

42



 

20 The schools’ teams will eventually be rolled out fully across Dorset.  The CCG 
is already considering how this will be done and how it could be funded. 
Although it is technically a pilot the notion of up scaling is already being 
considered.  

 
Locally driven developments 
 
21 An Assessment and Brief Intervention approach that will become part of 

the CAMHS services and will become the entry point in to NHS CAMHS 
services.   

 
22 The purpose of this development is to ensure that CPY are not held on 

waiting lists beyond four weeks.  This is also likely to be an NHS target area in 
the future. 

 
23 Once a referral has been made to CAMHS, the child or young person will be 

assessed and be able to access some form or brief intervention over four 
weeks.   

 
24 This approach will mean that CYP will have four week’s support/intervention 

at which point they will be able to be discharged.  It will also mean that CYP 
who require more intensive support will be able to access it more swiftly. 

25 This will be the most effective way of managing demand for the services and 
making sure that children and young people get the help they require when 
they require it. 

 
Future Local transformation planning 
 
26 Currently the CCG and Partners are continuing to plan and implement 

changes dependent on local need. 
 
27 This is happening in the same way other MH transformational programmes 

have been developed such as the MH Acute Care Pathway and Dementia 
Reviews.  The programme of work is happening in the following stages: 

 
1. Needs analysis – to help the system to understand demand, need, 

activity, gaps and capacity  

2. View Seeking – to understand staff and other stakeholders’ views about 

what works well, what works less well and where the gaps are. 

3. Business Case and Strategy Development – based on what must 

happen and based upon what people say in the view seeking.  For 

example, if people say we want to have a place to go in crisis – the 

development of a CYP retreat might be considered. 

4. Implementation will be planned in priority order to best meet the CYP 

population. 

 
28 The following table describes the various work streams in more detail. 
 

Workstream What’s included 

Needs analysis  Demand and activity information 

43



 

 Dorset (including BCP) population CYP MH Needs 

 Identification of gaps in provision based on need 

 Issues that impact on MH such as poverty and 
deprivation and adverse childhood experiences 

View seeking  All staff working in CAMHS services being asked their 
views about how services can be developed, where the 
pressures are, how their work can be made more 
effective etc. 

 Wider stakeholders, including children, families, GPs, 
social care staff, schools etc. all to be asked for their 
views about what works well and what works less well 

 We will also be asking where, how and their preferences 
in terms of finding information/advice/support for day to 
day MH needs 

 We will also be asking the same questions in relation to 
times of crisis. 

Strategy 
development 
Business Case 
development 

 The CYP Local Transformation Plan will be developed 
into the CYP MH Strategy and it will show the strategic 
ambition for children’s emotional and mental health 

 The strategy document will provide young people and 
their families with information i.e. everything they need to 
know about mental health support in Dorset. 

 The business case will highlight for Dorset CCG the 
investment required to ensure access for 100% of CYP 
who require some form of MH support/treatment 

 Both will be informed by the view seeking and by 
understanding the local need and demand for services  

 The business case will be presented to Dorset CCG in 
May/June 2020 and will outline the plan and the 
associated costs 

 

Implementation  The “must do” items e.g. Schools Teams and Home 
treatment to be implemented in 2020 

 

 
High level Time Table 
 
29 The proposed time table for the above programme of work is described in the 

table below. 
 

High Level Time Table  

Implement 
MHST in 
Schools   
 
Crisis Home 
treatment 
teams 
 

Schools teams to be fully implemented with a 
nine-month lead in period from January 2020 
 
 
Developed and fully implemented 
 
 
 
Developed Implemented by 2021  

September 
2020 
 
 
June 2020 
 
 
 
April 2021 

44



 

Psychiatric 
Liaison 

Need analysis Fully developed need analysis to be 
completed  
 

March 2020 

View seeking To be carried out in two stages then 
evaluated by Bournemouth University.  
Stages 
 
1. All staff working in CAMHS settings 
2. Public and other stakeholders including 

children, young people 
 

Mid-January to 
End March 
2020 

Strategy and 
Business Case 

Fully completed and approved by all parties. Sept 2020 

Implementation Once approved an implementation plan will 
be developed to get services up and running 
over an agreed period of times with in priority 
order 
 

From Sept 
2020 onwards  

 
Conclusion 
 
30 The programme of work described in this document is ambitious and exciting.  

It provides the opportunity to make sure that all children living in Dorset are 
able to access the right support at the right time to meet their needs in 
different and creative ways. 

 
31 These proposals will ensure that staff with skills and abilities in relation to 

treatment and evidence based interventions are able to focus on that work 
because young people will be able to get helps sooner, in schools and 
through the Assessment and Brief Intervention approach. 

 
32 Although this paper focusses in on CYP MH it is the intention to ensure that 

this programme of work overlaps with and supports and complements all the 
other Children and Young people’s work. This includes looked after children, 
children in the criminal justice system, children who have physical health 
issues and children who have learning difficulties and Autistic Spectrum 
Conditions.   

 
33 It is hoped that this document is easy to read and provides a real sense of 

clarity in relation to Dorset’s future CYP MH service development and a sense 
of excitement about the possibilities of improving things for young people who 
live anywhere in Dorset. 

45



This page is intentionally left blank

46



BCP Health and Well-being Board 

 

Report subject Outcome of Health and Well-Being Board Development 
Session on 28.11.2019 

Meeting date 30 January 2020 

Status Public Report  

Executive summary The BCP Health and Well-Being Board held a Development 
Session on 28.11.2019 which covered three items: 

i) Multi-agency responses to working with our 

communities of highest deprivation  

ii) Priorities for the Health and Well-Being Board and 

development of a BCP Health and Well-Being 

Strategy 

iii) Priorities for a Local Government Peer Review of 

Special Educational Needs and Disabilities 

integrated working in January 2020. 

For item i), representatives of the BCP Community Safety 
Partnership participated in the meeting. 

At the Development Session, partners made decisions which 
are set out in the Record of the meeting which is attached at 
Appendix 1.  This report recommends that the Board approve 
the public record and the decisions taken at the Development 
Session and also requests that officers develop a BCP Health 
and Well-Being Strategy in line with the framework work set 
out in Appendix 2 which includes discussions and 
recommendations agreed by Board members at the 
Development Session.  

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that the Board: 

1) Approves the public record of the Development 

Session, including the decisions as recorded in this 

document (See Appendix 1)  

2) Approves the framework for a BCP Health and Well-

Being Strategy as set out in Appendix 2 and requests 

that officers use the framework to develop a Health 

and Well-Being Strategy for the BCP Health and Well-

47

Agenda Item 11



Being Board for the Board’s consideration at its 

meeting on 17th June 2020.  

  

Reason for 
recommendations 

Following the BCP Health and Well-Being Board’s 
Development Session in November 2019, it is important to 
publish both the record of the meeting and for the Board to 
approve and follow up on the actions agreed at this meeting.  

Corporate Director 
for BCP Council  

Jan Thurgood, Corporate Director, Adult Social Care 

Contributors  

Wards All  

Classification For Decision. 
Title:  

 

 

 

Background  

1.  The BCP Health and Well-Being Board held a Development Session on 

28.11.2019 which covered three areas: 

i) Multi-agency responses to working with our communities of highest 

deprivation 

ii) Priorities for the Health and Well-Being Board and developing a BCP 

Health and Well-Being Strategy  

iii) Priorities for a Local Government Peer Review of Special Educational 

Needs and Disabilities. 

      Section i) of the meeting was also attended by BCP Community Safety    
     Partnership representatives. 
 

2. Appendix 1 of the report contains a record of the key discussions and also 

decisions taken at the session and the Board is asked to approve the record and 

the decisions taken. 

3. Key decisions taken were as follows: 

i) Multi-agency responses to working with our communities of highest 

deprivation 

a) All partners agreed that there would continue to be structured multi-

agency working in the Boscombe area and in a geographical area 

where there are indices of high deprivation which includes Kinson/West 

Howe.  

48



b) All partners agreed to set-up and participate in a Task and Finish 

Group which would develop further a strategy to empower and work 

with all communities where there is entrenched and emergent 

deprivation.  This group will be chaired by the Corporate Director for 

Environment and Communities, BCP Council and all partners will 

nominate representatives to the Working Party. 

c) That Public Health would liaise with the BCP and Dorset Health and 

Wellbeing Boards to ensure that key elements of work with 

communities of deprivation (such as data collation and analysis) in the 

two Health and Well-Being Board areas are delivered in a coherent 

way so that agencies which cover both areas are not required to 

duplicate activity and that maximum engagement and impact is 

achieved in each individual community.  

 

ii) Priorities for the Health and Well-Being Board and developing a BCP 

Health and Well-Being Strategy  

a) That the framework for a Health and Well-Being Strategy as presented 

would form the basis for the development of the BCP Health and Well-

Being Strategy with the following additions/amendments: 

- to include an aim ‘to ensure children and young people have the best 

start in life’; 

- that the wording of the focus of working with highest need communities 

must reflect the importance of being community led.  

 

iii) Priorities for the Local Government Peer Review of Special Educational 

Needs and Disabilities  

The members of the Board agreed the priorities areas for the SEND 

review and these are recorded in Appendix 1 and have been incorporated 

into the programme for the Peer Review.  

 

4. An outline framework for a BCP Health and Well-Being Strategy is attached at 

Appendix 2.  This incorporates proposals and additions raised in the 

Development Session. The Board is asked to approve this outline framework and 

to request that officers use this to develop a Strategy which is presented to the 

Board for consideration and approval on 17th June 2020.  

 

Summary of financial implications  

5. The decisions taken at the Development Session mean that all agencies commit 

to contribute their agency resources as appropriate in relation to collective aims 

and areas of focus of the developing Health and Well-Being Strategy. This means 

committing personnel as well as relevant financial resources.  It was recognised 

that in the Development Session that local people and communities will be key 

contributors to the plans and outcomes intended and that the community and 

49



voluntary sector, the private sector, local businesses, schools and education 

providers will all need to be engaged as active partners in fulfilling the aims of the 

Strategy.  The Health and Well-Being Board and its partner agencies will look to 

attract government and other external funding to support the delivery of the 

Strategy.  

 

Summary of legal implications  

6.  Health and Well-Being Boards are required to publish a Joint Health and Well-

Being Strategy, under the provisions of the Health and Social Care Act 2012.  

 

Summary of human resources implications  

7.  All partners of the Health and Well-Being Board will work to ensure that their 

staff understand and contribute to the strategic aims of the Board as will be set 

out in the Health and Well-Being Strategy. 

 

Summary of environmental impact  

8. The proposed Health and Well-Being Strategy recognises the Climate and 

Ecological Emergency and commits to ensure that the Board’s Strategy and 

collective actions work to addressed this.  

 

Summary of public health implications  

9. The Health and Well-Being Strategy will be key in ensuring that all partners work 

together to improve health and well-being in the BCP Council area with an 

overarching objective set to extend healthy life expectancy at Council and 

neighbourhood population level. 

 

Summary of equality implications  

10.  The Health and Well-Being Strategy needs to ensure that it is relevant to all 

residents and particularly those who have protected characteristics and those 

who experience poverty and deprivation. It is recognised that the strategy must 

be delivered by being community led and be based on the principle of delivering 

personalised responses to individuals and families.  In particular, the BCP Health 

and Well-Being Board is making a commitment to ensuring that every child has 

the opportunity to have the best start in life and to improving outcomes for 

children, young people and young adults who have Special Educational Needs 

and Disabilities.  

50



Summary of risk assessment  

11.  The delivery of the aims and objectives of the Health and Well-Being Strategy 

are dependent on the collective commitment of all partners and on ensuring that 

all partners work with a community led and engagement approach and put co-

production with children, families and adults who use services at the centre of all 

activities.  In order to achieve successful delivery of the Strategy, partners will 

need to work with commitment to these principles.  

 

Appendices  

Appendix 1 : Summary Health and Wellbeing Board Development Session 
 
Appendix 2 : Proposals for BCP Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
 

51



This page is intentionally left blank

52



Health and Wellbeing Board Development Session,  

9am-12 midday 

28 November 2019 

Council Chamber, Christchurch Civic Offices  

 

Attendance: Item 1 was attended by representatives of both the BCP Health and Well-

Being Board and BCP Community Safety Partnership.  Subsequent items were attended by 

representatives of the BCP Health and Well-Being Board only. 

List of attendees:  

Kelly Ansell, Head of Communities; Louise Bate, Healthwatch Dorset; Kevin Baxter, NPS Dorset; Sam 

Crowe, Director of Public Health; Cllr L Dedman, Portfolio Holder for Adults and Health; Jane Elson, 

Dorset Healthcare; Julie Feilding, Assistant Chief Constable Dorset Police; Debbie Fleming, Chief 

Executive Poole Hospital and the Royal Bournemouth and Christchurch Hospital; Tim Goodson, Vice-

Chairman and Chief Officer at Dorset CCG; Jane Horne, Public Health Dorset; Claire Hughes, BCP 

Safeguarding Adults Board; Tracey Kybert, Housing Services BCP; Karen Loftus, Chief Executive at 

Bournemouth and Poole CVS; Cat McMillan, Communities Manager BCP; Cllr S Moore, Portfolio 

Holder for Children and Families; Jason Mumford, OPCC; Bianca Porter, Public Health; Julian 

Radcliffe, BCP Children’s Services; Judith Ramsden, Corporate Director for Children’s Services BCP 

Council; David Richardson, Poole North Lead GP; Kate Ryan, Corporate Director of Environment and 

Community; Sally Sandcraft Director PCC Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group; Martha Seale, 

Community Development; Cllr V Slade, Chairman and Leader of BCP Council; Jan Thurgood, 

Corporate Director Adult Social Care; James Vaughan, Chief Constable; Seth Why, Dorset and 

Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service; Andy Williams, Head of Safer Communities; Cllr K Wilson, 

Portfolio Holder for Housing;  

 

1) Multi-agency responses to working with our communities of highest 

deprivation 

Presented by: Kelly Ansel, Head of Communities; Sam Crowe, Director of Public Health; Kate 

Ryan, Corporate Director.   

Introduction: 

The purpose of the presentation was to discuss with partners the future approach to 

working with communities of highest deprivation. This included a request for partners to  

consider the communities which they would like to support with focused engagement and a 

question around how this could be approached for  the new council area.  

The Head of Housing and Community Enforcement highlighted that the new BCP Council 

Health and Wellbeing Board, the new BCP Corporate Plan and the refreshed Integrated Care 

System Plan provided an opportunity for partners to work together to improve outcomes in 

communities of highest deprivation.  

53



The group were also informed that work in predecessor councils had included regeneration 

boards and neighbourhood regeneration in Boscombe and West Howe. Additionally, anti-

poverty and community development across BCP had included work in Bourne Valley, Poole 

Old Town, Hamworthy, Strouden Park and Somerford.   

The Director of Public Health explained that the BCP Council boundary could be considered, 

postcode areas or household level data. There was potential to pool information together 

and consider it in detail. The group were prompted to consider what perspectives they were 

interested in, examples included housing, children’s, older people and crime and disorder.  

The Group were shown the 2019 Indices of Multiple Deprivation, which catagorised areas of 

deprivation across BCP Council. This was compared to perceptions of Crime and Anti-Social 

Behaviour across BCP by Lower Super Output Area. The link between the housing market 

and deprivation was highlighted and the potential impact on an area of different housing 

tenures and perceptions of crime and disorder.   

It was explained that working with communities and all relevant partners was key to tackling 

deprivation. It was important to recognise that effective approaches needed to address key 

structural issues in relation to the determinants of deprivation such as housing conditions 

and strategy.  Examples of evidence based area which could deliver results, included giving 

every child the best start in life, working with communities to tackle crime and anti-social 

behaviour and ensuring a healthy standard of living for all.  

It was particularly highlighted that local leaders had a role in developing sustainable places 

and communities for residents and in ensuring the right resources were available to work 

with and support those communities. This could be facilitated through an understanding of 

what the communities want for themselves. A move towards a personalised approach to 

health and adult social care was also considered important. 

The following questions were posed to 4 groups.  

How does your organisation work in communities of highest deprivation? 

- what are the challenges/frustrations/barriers to effective partnership/ collaborative 

working?  

What do we want to do differently? 

- what are the opportunities? 

Which communities will partner support with focused engagement and partnership 

working –  

- how should we target our work in communities? 

- How will we know we are making a difference?  

Following discussion, the groups were asked which communities they felt should be 

prioritised and how they could work with partners to deliver for those communities;  

54



Group 1: Continue with Boscombe and Kinson as a priority and to also focus on the 

emerging areas of deprivation. That agencies should work together to understand the issues 

and to come up with a proposal on how to move work forward. This work should start with 

the community who should be involved from the beginning.  

Group 2: Need to work on the understanding of the issue and on how to engage with 

communities. This should include learning from best practice and work to improve 

entrenched areas. That more time was necessary in order to identify key areas of focus in 

each area and to consider large and small scale responses.  

Group 3: The importance of community engagement, working with settled and transient 

areas and considering the needs of children with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities.  

Group 4: The importance of developing a strategy that measured outcomes. That further 

work was necessary to understand how to prioritise outcomes.  

Additional Discussion  

 Could the HWBB learn from what Southampton and Portsmouth were doing to 

improve areas of deprivation? 

 The importance of getting close to the ground and building a response with 

individual communities; 

 That some partners work across Dorset and it was important to have a clear, 

coherent, offer and an understanding of what would improve outcomes and deliver 

efficiencies across Dorset.  The collection and collation of datasets needs to be done 

in the same way across BCP and Dorset and Public Health can assist with this.  

  However, some agencies work only in the BCP area so all partners need to ensure 

that there work is co-ordinated in terms of place and is relevant to individual and 

distinct communities.  

 It was important to avoid duplication and working with Dorset Council could ensure 

shared learning and best practice. 

 That residents will move and access services across boundaries; 

 It was important to consider needs at a local community level and to tailor services 

to individual areas, working with front line staff and the voluntary sector to 

understand what is happening at street level; 

 The importance of considering the wider area in the delivery of resources; 

 

Decision:  

a) All partners agreed that there would continue to be structured multi-agency working 

in the Boscombe area and in a geographical area where there are indices of high 

deprivation which includes Kinson/West Howe.  

b) All partners agreed to set-up and participate in Task and Finish Group which would 

develop further a strategy to empower and work with all communities where there 

is entrenched and emergent deprivation.  This group will be chaired by Kate Ryan 

55



and all partners should send nominations for the Working Party to Kate Ryan at BCP 

Council. 

c) That Public Health would liaise with BCP and Dorset Health and Wellbeing Boards to 

ensure that key elements of work with communities of deprivation (such as data 

collation and analysis) in the two Health and Well-Being Board areas are delivered in 

a coherent way so that agencies which cover both areas are not required to 

duplicate activity and that maximum engagement and impact is achieved in each 

individual community.  

2) Proposals for a BCP Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy 

Presented by: Cllr Vikki Slade (Board Chairman) 

Introduction:  

The Chairman of the HWBB gave a presentation to the group on proposals for a BCP Health 

and Wellbeing Board Strategy. It was highlighted that the purpose of the strategy was to 

provide focus and direction to the work of the HWBB and to agree a limited number of key 

aims, indicators and milestones to measure the Board’s impact on health and wellbeing. The 

importance of effectiveness and making a difference was emphasised.  (See presentation 

attached).  

The proposed overarching aims were explained and three potential key areas of focus – 

working with areas of high deprivation; an annual theme (which for 20/21 would be 

increasing physical activity) and working on priority areas of partnership work. It was 

highlighted that indicators and milestones were important and should be tracked regularly 

to measure improvements in outcomes over time. The Group were asked to comment on 

the proposals.  

Discussion:  

 The importance of considering people and place; 

 That the offering for active lifestyles should consider how to engage different 

people. It should also consider what having an active lifestyle means to individual 

groups and how to best meet their needs; 

 That it is important to prioritise the needs of children in the strategy and the best 

start in life for our children should be an additional strategic aim: 

 Tackling violent crime is an important priority and a public health approach should 

be adopted. It was agreed that the Community Safety Partnership would lead on this 

work and report progress and outcomes to the H and WBB. 

 That there should be a collective understanding of SEND and the experience of those 

who have needs but don’t meet the formal criteria for an Education, Health and Care 

Plan. 

 That a community led approach must be taken in relation to working with 

communities and the language of the strategy needs to reflect this.  

56



 Ensuring the proposals are linked to and influence other parts of the council, for 

example do public spaces need to be redesigned to encourage being outdoors, 

walking or cycling?  

 The significance of the prevention agenda, the unpacking of active lifestyles and the 

provision of a hook in for everyone, including connecting with employers;  

 There was general agreement that the framework for the strategy outlined could 

work well.  

Decision 

 That the framework for a Health and Well-Being Strategy as presented would form 

the basis for the development of the BCP Health and Well-Being Strategy with the 

following additions/amendments: 

- To include an aim ‘to ensure children and young people have the best start in life’; 

- That the wording of the focus of working with highest need communities must 

reflect the importance of being community led.  

 

Priorities for a Local Government Peer Review of Special Educational Needs and 

Disabilities integrated working in January 2020 

Presented by: Richard Cooke, National Programme Manager Children’s Services, LGA; Judith 

Ramsden, Corporate Director Children’s Services; Sally Sandcraft, Director of Primary and 

Community Care, NHS Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group 

Introduction: It was explained to the Group that the Peer Challenge involved independent and 

external scrutiny. It would be led by peers from different regions and was not an inspection but an 

opportunity to evidence strengths and confirm priorities for future development. It would challenge 

areas of work, costs and partnership arrangements by being a critical friend. The advice would be 

robust and challenging however strengths would also be recognized.  What was key was the focus 

on improving outcomes for some of the most vulnerable children.  

The methodology was explained to the Group. This included looking at the areas self-assessment 

and assessing performance. This was usually carried out by four people from health or education 

and led by a senior officers such as a Director of Children’s Services. It was highlighted that a larger 

team may be necessary to reflect the current differing processes across Bournemouth, Christchurch 

and Poole. Documents would also be examined including a random sample of EHCP’s. Themes would 

be identified and discussed with practitioners. There would also be onsite interviews and 

discussions, focus groups (particularly parents, carers and young people) and observations. 

The review would take place during four days in late January. At the end of the four days, a verbal 

summary of findings would be provided, followed by a report approximately three weeks later.  

The team would look at standard themes that aligned with those considered by SEND inspectors, 

these included leadership and governance of SEND across the local area; capacity and resources; 

identification of children and young people with SEND, meeting the needs of children with SEND and 

improving their outcomes.  

The group were asked whether there were areas Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole would like 

the peer team to focus on?  

57



 The emerging strategy; 

 How impact rather than inputs could be measured; 

 How children and young people were prepared for adulthood; 

 Early intervention to stop issues becoming complex;  

 The increasing challenge of children in acute settings and how best to work collaboratively 

with partners on early intervention; 

 How to effectively share skills and knowledge across partners; 

 How to progress the personalized offer to young people, best utilize community assets and 

engage young people in activities to improve outcomes;  

 How to work effectively as a system and provide a holistic offer; 

They also discussed; 

 How individuals around health, care plans and forums would be involved in the review; 

 Where SEND was being discussed already and an assurance that partners would be informed 

and engaged. 

The group were asked to note that this was not an inspection. To get the best results it was 

requested that the all partners  were open and transparent and that Staff were not briefed 

or scripted.  

58



BCP Mission statement here 

Presenter:  Cllr Vikki Slade

Chairman of BCP Health and Well-Being Board

PROPOSALS FOR BCP

HEALTH AND WELL-BEING 

STRATEGY

28 November 2019

59



Purpose:  

- To provide focus and direction to the work of the Health and Well-Being Board

- To agree indicators and milestones which measure the Board’s impact on 

health and well-being

Context:

Comprehensive plan for Dorset Integrated Care System ‘Our Dorset –

Looking Forward’

Health and Well-Being Strategy

60



- To increase healthy life expectancy for BCP population, currently 63 years

(Actual life expectancy is 80 years for males and 83 years for females)

- Ensure all partners and communities work effectively together to achieve 

improving health and well-being, especially for those most disadvantaged and 

make best use of our collective resources

- Ensure that all children and young people have opportunities to have the best 

start in life 

- Ensure, in all the Board does, we recognise and address the climate 

emergency

Proposed Overarching Aims

61



Focus on 3 areas:

1. Engaging with and empowering communities of highest need in order to 

improve healthy life expectancy

2. Annual priority to accelerate work to promote healthy lives and well-being

3. Provide governance, support and challenge to priority partnerships

Proposals for BCP Health and Well-Being Strategy

62



- Board partners will work collectively to

- agree the priority communities, which will include Boscombe and the 

Kinson/West Howe area

- develop engagement plan with each community 

- develop a partnership framework which secures the contribution of all 

relevant partners in each local area

- develop with local communities key indicators in order evaluate impact 

1. Engaging with and empowering Communities of 

Highest Need Collectively to Improve Healthy 

Life Expectancy

63



Board will:

- Agree an annual theme – for 2020/21 this will be active lifestyles

- Learn from national/international best practice

- Develop a programme of engagement with broad range of stakeholders 

(including a Board conference) to gain commitments to action

- Evaluate impact over time 

2.  Annual Priority to Accelerate Work to Promote 

Healthy Lives and Well-Being

64



Priorities for 2020/21: 

- Improve outcomes for children, young people, young adults who have special 

educational needs and disabilities

- Assuring that safeguarding arrangements for children and vulnerable adults are 

effective

- Ensure BCP Outcomes are delivered through ‘Our Dorset – Looking Forward’ 

including maximising benefit of major changes in local NHS services

- Ensure good outcomes for residents through the Better Care Fund 

3.  Provide governance, support and challenge to 

priority partnerships

65



Board to establish indicators which measure

- Improved health and well-being in communities of highest need

- Impact of partnership work on annual theme area

- Progress in key areas of partnership working

- Progress in increasing healthy life expectancy

Measuring Impact

66



1 
 

 
Forward Plan – BCP HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

 
Recommendation: 

1. That the Health and Wellbeing Board approve the Forward Plan and makes amendments as necessary. 
 

Board Meeting Date: 30 January 2020 
 

Item Title  Reason for Item  Desired Outcome 
 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Why has it come to the Board? 

 

BCP Council Local Plan To ensure early 
engagement and shaping 
of issues for BCP Local 
Plan  

Timely input from the 
Board into the Local Plan  

Nick Perrins To gain Board input to policy 
development at an early stage.  

BCP Housing Strategy To outline the approach to 
develop a BCP Housing 
Strategy and gain early 
input from the Board  

A Housing Strategy that 
reflects an holistic view of 
housing need and has 
partner support as it is 
developed  

Lorraine 
Mealings  

To gain Board input to policy 
development at an early stage.  

Dementia Services Review 
Update 
 
 

To update the Board on 
the new services following 
the completion of the 
Dementia Services 
Review. 

That the Health and Well-
Being Board is fully 
briefed on changes to 
local dementia services 
and the future model of 
care. 

Sally Sandcraft To ensure the Board is briefed on 
changes to local dementia services 

SEND – Quarterly Update To receive an update on 
the current position 
subject to a further 
detailed report being 
submitted to the Board in 
March following the 
external LGA Peer 
Challenge on SEND. 

 

 

That the Board maintains 
oversight of the issue and 
contributes to the 
development of progress 
against the Code of 
Practice.  

Julian Radcliffe  To enable the Boards views to be 
considered and to enable the Board to 
maintain oversight of this issue 

67

A
genda Item

 13



2 
 

CAMHS Transformation 
Update 
 
 

That the HWBB receives 
and update on the 
implementation of the 
transformation plans, 
including CAMHS 
transformation. 

That the Board maintains 
oversight of the issue and 
contributes to the 
development of the Plan. 

Colin Hicks  
Elaine Hurll  
Dorset CCG  
 

To enable the Boards views to be 
considered and to enable the Board to 
maintain oversight of this issue 

Outcomes and Actions from 
the Development session on 
28 November 2019  

 

 
 

That the Board considers 
the outcomes and actions 
from the development 
session held on 28 
November 2019 

To enable the Board to 
progress the outcomes 
and actions to the next 
stage.  

Jan Thurgood  To enable approval and engagement 
on the actions by all partners. 

 
 
Development Session: 27 February 2019 
 

Implementation of key 
changes in local health 
services including changes 
in acute hospital services 
and the development of 
community hubs in the 
Bournemouth, 
Christchurch and Poole 
area.  
 
 

Significant changes are 
planned in local health 
services.  It is important 
both that the Health and 
Well-Being Board is fully 
briefed on the detailed 
planning for these 
changes and that the 
Health and Well-Being 
Board can contribute to 
detailed planning.  

That all Health and Well-
Being Board members are 
fully briefed on significant 
planned changes in local 
health services and Board 
members contribute to the 
development of plans so 
that the needs of all 
residents are best met by 
future services.  

Tim Goodson; 
Debbie 
Fleming; Sally 
Sandcraft 

All significant planned health 
service changes best meet 
residents’ needs and facilitate 
effective multi-agency working and 
best use of public resources.  

Primary Care Networks As from Summer 2019, 
GP practices will be 
working in Primary Care 
Networks in order to better 
meet the needs of their 
individual patients, families 
and local communities.  It 
is important that the 
Health and Well-Being 
Board contributes to the 

That the Health and Well-
Being Board is fully briefed 
on the development of 
PCNs and all Board 
partners contribute to the 
development of effective 
PCNs.  

Sally Sandcraft  That the Board and its partners 
contribute to the effective 
development of PCNs. 

68



3 
 

effective development of 
PCNs 

 
 
 
Meeting Date TBC  
 

Suicide Prevention 
Strategy  

To discuss the BCP 
approach to suicide 
prevention, including the 
Suicide Partnership Plan 
and the Councils next 
steps.  
 

Engagement and input 
from the Board into the 
Councils Suicide 
Prevention Strategy  

Elaine Hurll / 
Sam Crowe   

To enable the Boards views to be 
considered and to enable the 
Board to maintain oversight of this 
issue 

Better Care Fund (March 
2020) 

The Board to receive an 
update on the Better Care 
Fund – March.   

That the Board is kept 
informed of developments 

Elaine Stratman To enable the Boards views to be 

considered and to enable the 

Board to maintain oversight of this 

issue. 

 

SEND Quarterly Update  That the Board maintains 
oversight of the issue and 
contributes to the 
development of progress 
against the Code of 
Practice. 

 To enable the Boards views to be 

considered and to enable the 

Board to maintain oversight of this 

issue 

 

69



T
his page is intentionally left blank

70


	Agenda
	4a Minutes of meeting held on 25 September 2019
	4b Action Sheet
	6 BCP Council Local Plan
	8 Dementia Services Review Update
	10 CAMHS Transformation Update
	11 Outcomes and Actions from the Development Session 28 November 2019
	Appendix 1 Summary Health and Wellbeing Board Development Session
	Appendix 2 Proposals for BCP - Health and Well-being Strategy

	13 Forward Plan

